


































































Gary R. O’Connor - Architect, LLC 8 Coryell Street, Lambertville, New Jersey 08530, 609-397-3635

January 2, 2020

Historic Preservation Commission
Township of Neptune
25 Neptune Blvd
Neptune, NJ 07753

Re: Findings of Fact – 28 Seaview Ave. Partial Demolition Application

To whom it may concern,

The following are Findings of Facts to the best of our knowledge:

a. Key Structure Classification:  The existing residential house qualifies as a Key
Structure as records indicate the house existing in 1879 as the Douglass Residence.  

b. Age of Structure and Additions: The 1890 Sanborn Map (see Drawing A-2) 
shows the house along with a one-story covered frame porch on the rear.  The 1910 
Sanborn Map records the porch as a two-story covered porch with the rear wall now 
indicated as closed in.  In 1930 the Map no longer indicates the nature of the porch 
footprint.

c. Architectural Style:  The principal house has a U-shaped two-story covered porch 
in the front with clapboard siding and is characteristic of the Ocean Grove seaside 
vernacular designs of the town/period.  This home is simpler in detail than examples of 
similar period homes.

d. The current Owners, Steve and Susan Harris, purchased the home in 2019.  
Historically, this was a one-family dwelling but at some point, it has been converted 
into a non-conforming two-family dwelling.  The Harris family intends to restore the 
use back to a single-family home.   We have learned that the previous owner inherited 
the property from his parents who purchased the property circa 1979. We believe the 
2-family use modifications occurred in the eighties.

e. Partial Demolition Rational – The supporting structure of the rear porch 
appendage was likely never designed to be a two-story enclosed structure as its
original construction was only a one-story porch.  This portion of the building is 
sinking into the ground and is damaging the principal structure.   The proposed roof 
opening is part of a renovation plan to add shed dormer for added natural light in a 
proposed art studio for Susan Harris.

f. We have included these agencies in notification regarding the proposed Partial 
Demolition action/meeting.

g. Any examples, displays or designs which adopt or promote a seashore style or 
vernacular…; The elements being removed have no architectural significance and in
fact is clad with a non-approved material (Texture 1-11).  

h. The Structural Soundness and integrity of the structure and the economic 
feasibility of restoring, repairing, or rehabilitating the structure to comply with the 
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requirements of the applicable building codes as determined by a qualified 
professional.  The integrity of the enclosed porch appendage is causing damage to the 
principal structure.  The enclosed porch is also non-conforming to the rear zoning 
setback as it is built within inches of the property line.  Structural repairs to the 
principal structure are anticipated once the dilapidated appendage can be removed.

i. The impact of the partial demolition on the historic district and the surrounding 
neighborhoods within the Historic District compared with the existing property.  The
rear porch enclosure and/or the proposed roof opening will not have a negative impact 
as they are not visible from the public right of way. One could argue from a rear yard
neighborhood perspective, that the removal of this rear addition offers the removal of 
an eyesore visible primarily to adjacent rear and side yard neighbors.   

j. This partial demolition will have no negative impact upon the surrounding 
economic base of the surrounding neighborhood and Historic District.  If anything, the
course of improvements that will follow will provide jobs for local tradesman and 
material suppliers and ultimately a rejuvenation of this key structure under the 
stewardship of new caring homeowners.

k. Again, as noted above, this partial demolition being located on the rear lot line, is 
not a high visibility location and therefore will not negatively impact the Public’s 
interest in architectural, historic, and aesthetic matters generally including the 
maintenance of an existing streetscape, massing or historic continuity that the structure 
may be associated with.

l. The principal structure and the most important part of this building is being 
rejuvenated with plans to be filed under a separate certificate of appropriateness
application.  The portion of the structure scheduled for partial demolition is in the rear 
and will not be a detriment to the public interest.

m. This key structure is being rehabilitated.  The portion being removed holds little 
significance and there are no special details or millwork associated with this part of the 
building for which I trust visiting Board Members will concur when they visit.

n. The subject property’s partial demolition, as scheduled, is not visible nor located 
in a prominent location. 

We look forward to visiting the property with board members and responding to questions they 
may pose as part of the review process.

Sincerely,

Gary R. O’Connor, AIA
Architect

Cc; Mr. & Mrs. Steven Harris   
File                                  
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